JSC Human Resources and Procurement Office (HRPO) Support Services

Responses to Industry Questions - Draft Request for Proposal 

December 3, 2004


DRFP Question 1:
Do you anticipate any of the activities under this contract to go to the NASA Shared Services Operation?

DRFP Answer 1:
We are not aware at this time of the inclusion of any of these activities in the NASA Shared Services Operation
DRFP Question 2:
Do I understand that NASA/JSC expects/intends to train and develop the IT contractor staff to the level required for the contracted tasks?

DRFP Answer 2:
The contractor shall provide the skills required to perform the services required by the HRPO Statement of Work.  The Government will provide, when available, examples and guidance regarding the specific work to be performed. 

DRFP Question 3:
Is he saying that the rates are fixed for 5 years?

DRFP Answer 3: 
For those Standard Labor Categories (SLCs) your accounting system designates as “Exempt”, the fully burdened rate (FBR) will be fixed for the full 5 year span of anticipated contract performance.  The FBR for exempt SLCs could include straight time, labor escalation for each year, all applied indirect rates.  For those Standard Labor Categories (SLCs) your accounting system designates as “Non-Exempt,” only portions of the fully burdened rate (FBR) will be fixed for the full 5 year span of anticipated contract performance.  For non-exempt SLCs, the straight time portion of the FBR will change due to Department of Labor (DOL) wage determinations.  Any and all additive factors such as applied indirect rates will be fixed at contract award and will remain fixed for the duration of the contract.  Periodic DOL wage determinations will be incorporated into the contract via modification during contract performance.
DRPF Question 4:
Why are HR and Procurement bundled in this solicitation? Are the offices co-located? Common management? Etc?

DRFP Answer 4:
Historically, these requirements have been performed under one contract and this approach has proven to be advantageous to the Government.
DRFP Question 5:
What is the Financial, HR, & Procurement system being used? 

DRFP Answer 5:
There are multiple systems being used under this contract.  Examples of these systems are provided below and are identified in the applicable section of the Statement of Work:


Integrated Procurement Management System (IPMS), Integrated Financial Management (IFM) system, Systems Applications Products (SAP) system, Acquisition Management System (AMS)
DRFP Question 6:
Could the contractor provide their own software tools, such as: e-procurement, document management, web tools, resume & forms builders, small business/disadvantage compliance, etc?

DRFP Answer 6:
The systems required to complete the services under HRPO are internal Government systems that are used by civil servants and other NASA/JSC contractors.  It would not be feasible for the HRPO contractor to provide its own software tools.

DRFP Question 7:
How much of OSHA related training is needed for contractor personnel?

DRFP Answer 7:
OSHA training requirements are specified throughout 29 CFR 1910 and 29 CFR 1960.  Further information is available in the JSC Safety Handbook which is located at:

http://jsc-web-pub.jsc.nasa.gov/bd01/safety/index.html
DRFP Question 8:
Does the sub-contractor have to be a 8(a) certified company? 

DRFP Answer 8:
No, only the prime contractor must be 8(a) certified.  
DRP Question 9:
Do we have the liberty to suggest improvements to the current process? 

DRFP Answer 9:
The RFP allows for offerors to propose efficiencies.

DRFP Question 10:
Please explain the 2080 hrs. vs. the 1860 hrs “rule of thumb” in connection with estimating FTE.

DRFP Answer 10:
GENERALLY, 2,080 hours refers to the maximum number of actual work hours available to an employer in an average year.  (This amount may vary depending on whether the year in question is a leap year etc.)  Subtracted from the maximum available work hours will be the amount of paid time away from work you, as an employer, allow your employees.  The amount of paid time off is generally established through formal corporate policy which could become part of the benefit package you offer your employees.  Some examples of paid time off are; holidays, annual leave (vacation), sick leave, personal leave, jury duty, family leave, military leave, religious leave etc.  The difference between maximum available work hours and the sum of all paid time off (in terms of hours) is productive labor hours.  For example:  



Available Work Hours
2,080



Less:  10 Holidays @ 8 hrs
     80



Less:  2 Weeks Vacation
     80



Less:  1 Week Sick Leave
     40



Less:  Personal Leave
     20


Productive Labor Hours
1,860


Given the above, lets say you are bidding on a contract that you estimate (based on the scope of work) will require the following hours to complete:



Project Manager
1,200 hrs



Engineer

2,200 hrs



Electrician

   800 hrs



Carpenter

1,100 hrs



Plumber

1,600 hrs


Direct Labor Hours  
6,900 hrs


Based on the above examples, even though 5 separate labor categories will be required, the FULL TIME equivalent staff required to complete the contract is 3.7.  This FTE amount is derived by simply dividing total direct labor hours necessary to complete the contract by the available productive labor hours each employee (based on your paid leave corporate policies) can provide i.e. 6,900 / 1,860 = 3.7.  Generally, the NASA defines an FTE as the proposed productive hours needed to comprise one average full time employee.  FTEs can be expressed either by SLC or total needed for contract performance.



DRFP Question 11:
Clarify or be more specific on task statements. For example “develop SES qual packages,” “analyze procurement synopses,” the words contemplate high level work, but the labor categories suggest lower skill levels. 

DRFP Answer 11:
Although the contract requires analysis and development work to be performed as per the Statement of Work and the Task Orders, ultimately all products are reviewed and finalized by an experienced civil servant.  The SLCs reflect the skills the Government believes are necessary to satisfy the requirements of the contract.  Offerors are not limited to these SLCs in their proposal.  Offerors may propose labor categories other than the SLCs, however any additional labor categories must be defined.
DRFP Question 12:
Describe the labor categories in a preamble to the SOW.  This provides a good context for understanding the task descriptions. 

DRFP Answer 12:
Descriptions of the labor categories are included in Section L of the RFP and also as Attachment J-3 which is part of the model contract.
DRFP Question 13:
Section(s): H.5 Key Personnel and Facilities (page H-4)This section lists the “Project Manager” as the key personnel.  However, other places, such as the Standard Labor Category on page J-3 and the Cost Templates, list this position as “Program Manager.”  Should the Key Person in H.5 be listed as “Program Manager”?

DRFP Answer 13:
Yes, this was a typographical error.  The correct position title is Program Manager and the final RFP will be updated.
DRFP Question 14:
Section(s):  L.7.II Proposal (Management, Technical and Cost) Submittal (page L-4) This section states:  “the required Script for the HRPO proposal including all charts, graphs, and tables is Arial and the font size is 11”.  We recommend that charts, graphs, and tables be allowed to have a font size of 8 in order to effectively communicate approaches to evaluators.

DRFP Answer 14:
The font size for all areas of the HRPO RFP remains 11 point Arial.  This ensures consistency among all proposals.  
DRFP Question 15:
Are there margin requirements associated with the defined sheet of paper?

DRFP Answer 15:
A page is defined as one side of an 8-1/2" x 11" sheet of paper with at least one inch margins.on all sides.  The final RFP will be updated to reflect this requirement.
DRFP Question 16:
Section(s):  L.8 Proposal Information Required (page L-4) The second paragraph states:  “Six (6) copies of your proposal (excluding the Model Contract) shall be submitted in a single three ring binder as per delivery instructions in Section L.7.”  Please clarify whether this means that all 6 are in one, single binder or if each copy is submitted in a single binder.  Also, should one of the six be marked as “Original”?

DRFP Answer 16:
The proposal shall be submitted in two volumes as follows:

· Volume I - Management and Technical – Six copies in separate three ring binders (one marked original)

· Volume II - Cost -Six copies in separate three ring binders (one marked original)

· Offerors must also submit three  original executed copies of the model contract without bindings


Sections L.7 and L.8 will be further clarified in the final RFP.

DRFP Question 17:
The second paragraph in Section L.8 appears to have some missing text (“Three copies of the model contract shall be provided in”…….).

DRFP Answer 17:
The sentence will be updated in the final RFP as follows:


Three original signed copies of the model contract shall be submitted without bindings.

DRFP Question 18:
Section(s):  L.10.III.2 Instructions for Completion of Past Performance Questionnaire (page L-11) and Attachment L-2 Past Performance Questionnaire (page L-2-1)


The due date in Section L.10.III.2 for questionnaire submittal is January 24, 2005 while the due date on the Questionnaire Transmittal Letter on page L-2-1 is February 1, 2005.  Please clarify the correct date.

DRFP Answer 18:
All proposal data is due on the same day and time including the Past Performance Questionnaires.  The due date for proposal submission will be provided in the final RFP.

DRFP Question 19: 
Section(s):  M.3 Evaluation (pages M-2 and M-3) This section states on page M-3 that “Price, technical, past performance and management will be considered equal in importance and will not be assigned weights.  However, is there any weighting of the EC - Management Sections (i.e. safety plan, phase-in plan, TCP, approach)?  Due to the page constraints, we would like to understand where the proposal emphasis should be focused.

DRFP Answer 19:
There is no weighting within the individual Evaluation Criteria.  However, please note that the Phase-in Plan and Total Compensation Plan are not included in the total 35 page count limit.  The requirement for submittal of a Safety and Health Plan with the proposal submission has been eliminated.
DRFP Question 20:
Section(s):  L.10.III Past Performance (page L-10) The Past Performance heading states that this section is “Subject to the 25 page count limitation”.  We understand from Section L.7.II that the Past Performance Questionnaires are not included in the page limitation.  However, Section L.10.III.3 Safety and Environmental Performance can be quite lengthy with providing items such as OSHA logs for that past five years and insurance/workers’ compensation calculations.  We recommend that this section not be subject to the 25-page count limit.

DRFP Answer 20:
The offeror’s Relevant Past Performance information narrative is subject to the 35 page limit.  Past Performance Questionnaires and Safety and Environmental Performance data is not subject to the 35 page limitation.  The final RFP will be updated to increase the total page limit from 25 to 35 pages and to provide clarification on sections to be included in the overall page count.
DRFP Question 21:
Section(s): Sample Task Order HRPO-HR-02 The Sample Task Order refers to SOW Section 2.1 in the Narrative Task Description. SOW Section 2.1 is the Work Breakdown Structure for the entire HRPO effort. Please clarify the appropriate SOW references for this Sample Task Order.

DRFP Answer 21:
The Sample Task Order HRPO-HR-02 will be updated in the final RFP to reference SOW Sections 4.0 through 4.7.

DRFP Question 22:
Section(s): Sample Task Order HRPO-PO-01 SOW Section 5.5, Contract Filing, is not explicitly cited in the Sample Task Order (while all other subsections within SOW Section 5.0 are cited). Please clarify the appropriateness of SOW Section 5.5 to Sample Task Order HRPO-PO-01.

DRFP Answer 22:
The Sample Task Order will be updated to include Section 5.5 as a requirement under Sub-Tasks 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3.

DRFP Question 23:
Section(s):  L.8 Proposal Information Required (page L-7), II. Technical Approach – Task Orders (Included in the 25 page count limit) The instructions indicate responses are requested for each Sample Task Order. However, Sample Task Order HRPO-PO-01 includes four subtasks. Does the Government desire a consolidated response for the entire task order, or should the response be broken down by subtask to match the Excel Pricing Model? Also, if the response is broken down by subtask, can we respond to SOW 7.0, General Procurement Activities once and refer to it in subsequent subtask responses?

DRFP Answer 23:
Each task and or subtask shall be addressed independently.  Sections that are repetitive, such as 7.0 General Procurement Activities may be addressed once and referred to in subsequent subtask responses.

DRFP Question 24:
Section(s):  L.8 Proposal Information Required (page L-7), II. Technical Approach – Task Orders (Included in the 25 page count limit) SOW 3.0, Contract Management, is referenced in all three Sample Task Orders. Due to the limited page count, is it acceptable to respond to SOW 3.0 once and refer to it in subsequent task/subtask responses?

DRFP Answer 24:
Sections that are repetitive, such as 3.0 Contract Management may be addressed once and referred to in subsequent subtask responses.

DRFP Question 25:
Section(s):  DRL HRPO-4 Nondisclosure Statements  The DRL indicates that the Nondisclosure statements are due with the proposal submittal.  However, the DRD states that they are required for all employees prior to contract start.  Please clarify when they are specifically due.

DRFP Answer 25:
Nondisclosure Statements are not required with the proposal submittal.  They will be required for all employees prior to contract start.  The final RFP will be updated accordingly.
DRFP Question 26:
Section(s):  Section J, Attachment J-6, Approved Safety, Health and Compliance Plan Should the Safety, Health and Compliance Plan be submitted as part of the Model Contract or should it be submitted as part of the proposal volume?

DRFP Answer 26:
The final RFP will be updated to reflect a change in Safety and Health requirements.  The Safety and Health Plan will not be required from offerors with their proposal submission.  Upon selection of a contractor for HRPO, the Safety and Health Plan shall be provided by the HRPO contractor and must be approved by NASA/JSC and incorporated into the contract as Attachment J-6 during the phase-in period.  Offeror’s are required to address the overall Safety and Health Approach as per Section L of the RFP.
DRFP Question 27:
Section(s):  G.7 (a), List of Installation-Accountable Property and Services  This section states that office space will be provided to the extent that it is available.  Is it expected that the Program Manager will be located full time on site and that office space will be available?

DRFP Answer 27:
Yes, it is anticipated that the Program Manager will be provided onsite office space.

DRFP Question 28:
Section H.4, Representations, Certification, and other Statements of Offerors  It was mentioned in the Preproposal Conference that the offeror should input the proposal number and date in Section H.4.  However, there does not appear to be a place for this information in the DRFP.

DRFP Answer 28:
The Draft RFP provided a date as an example to offerors.  The final RFP will be revised and allow specific blanks for this information.

DRFP Question 29:
 B.4 refers to this as a fixed price contract. Is it not instead a fixed rate contract with fixed price task orders? “Fixed Price Contract” and “ID/IQ” seem to describe different kinds of contracts.

DRFP Answer 29:
HRPO is an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity Contract with Firm Fixed Price Task Orders.  The fully burdened rates (FBRs) will be fixed at contract award.  The FBRs will then be utilized to price each successive task order awarded.  Each awarded task order scope of work may increase or decrease due to Government requirements.



DRFP Question 30:
B.5 asks for rates that “are fully burdened, but without profit.”  The cost 

spreadsheets provided by the Government develop fully-burdened rates including profit. Why make us do it two ways? Fully burdened rates should include all elements of price, including profit. Further, fully burdened rates (including profit) should be used to develop Task Order pricing; once the rates are developed and approved at the contract level, the different elements of price (including profit) should not be a concern at the Task Order level.  Does separating out profit, including in Attachment L-3 (sample task orders), suggest that the Government expects to negotiate profit for each Task Order?

DRFP Answer 30:
The Government does not intend for offeror’s to calculate fully burdened labor rates in two different ways.  The prime offeror should not include profit in their Fully Burdened Labor Rates.  If applicable, only subcontractors would include profit in their Fully Burdened Labor Rates on the Rates Development Template.  The instructions for the cost templates will be clarified in the final RFP.  The Government does intend to negotiate profit for each Task Order based on risk and requirements.  The negotiated profit percentage shall never exceed the maximum profit percentage included in Section B of the contract.
DRFP Question 31:
C. Requires that profit be separated out; the cost spreadsheets provided by the Government already separate out profit both as an aggregate dollar amount and as a percentage of price. Forcing us to enter the same data multiple times increases the chances of error. Why can the Government not just look at the spreadsheet for complete profit information? 

DRFP Answer 31:
NASA assumes that the question is in reference to Section B paragraph B.5 C. titled “Profit”.  The Government does not require the data to be entered multiple times.  The requirement in Section B is for the offeror to propose a maximum profit percentage for Task orders issued under the contract.

The pricing templates in Section L are to be utilized to price the Sample Task Orders.  The profit proposed for the Sample Task Orders may differ from the maximum profit percentage proposed in Section B of the contract.
DRFP Question 32:
F.3 (a) (4) (ii) refers to obtaining security clearances.  What level of security clearance is required, for how many people?

DRFP Answer 32:
This paragraph provides examples of activities that may be required during phase-in of a contract.  The offeror shall perform phase-in in accordance with their NASA/JSC approved Phase-In Plan upon contract award.  Security Clearance are not required for the HRPO contract.  This paragraph will be modified in the final RFP to eliminate any reference to Security Clearances..

DRFP Question 33:  SECTION G (G.7) number is discontinuous.  Is something missing from 

the DRFP, or is paragraph numbering incorrect?

DRFP Answer 33:
The Draft RFP contains two clauses numbered as G.1.  The Final RFP will be updated to sequentially number the clauses in Section G from G.1 through G.7 as per the Table of Contents.  

DRFP Question 34:
SECTION J Attachment J-3 STANDARD LABOR CATEGORIES does not match DOL WD OCCUPATION CODE - TITLE. Notwithstanding the job descriptions and guidelines provided, how can anyone other than the incumbent know how the current tasks/employees map into the WD occupation codes? If we are required to guess, the Government should expect many wrong guesses, which should significantly complicate pricing evaluations. To level the playing field and reduce the pricing evaluation burden, will the Government provide DOL WD occupation codes for current incumbents?

DRFP Answer 34:
A Wage Determination is provided in Section J, Attachment J-4 that reflects the current DOL Occupation Codes utilized by the incumbent.  In addition a cross mapping of the SLC’s provided in the RFP to the current DOL Occupation Codes utilized by the incumbent will be posted in the HRPO Technical Library.  Offerors are responsible for crossing their existing labor categories over to the appropriate DOL labor categories to ensure DOL compliance.

DRFP Question 35:
SECTION L - L.7.II states that “Bindings are permitted on the 

technical/cost information.” Are cost and technical to be bound together? What kind of bindings does the Government have in mind?  Does this mean the management portion must not be bound?

DRFP Answer 35:
See answer to Question 16. 

DRPF Question 36:  L.7.II states “technical information shall not exceed 25 pages.” L.10.I.1 

states that the overall management approach is included in the 25 page count limit.  Are both statements correct?

DRFP Answer 36:
Yes both statements are correct.  However, the total page limit will be increased from 25 to 35 pages in the final RFP.  A total page limit of 35 pages applies to all sections that are page limited.  These instructions will be clarified in the final RFP.

DRFP Question 37:
L.8, second sentence of second paragraph is incomplete.

DRFP Answer 37:
See answer to Questions 17.
DRFP Question 38:
L8, last sentence of second paragraph is confusing; if faxes are not authorized, what is the purpose of the remainder of the sentence?

DRFP Answer 38:
The final RFP will be updated to clarify that facsimile offers are not authorized.
DRFP Question 39:
Will the Government disclose current DOL Occupation Codes for existing positions and thereby help to level the playing field and increase the integrity of all cost/price proposals?.
DRFP Answer 39:
See answer to Question 34.
DRFP Question 40:
L.13.1.a. First sentence states that price proposal shall be submitted in a separate volume; L.8 requires six copies of everything except model contract in a single binder. Which is it?

DRFP Answer 40:
See answer to Question 16.

DRFP Question 41:
Attachment L-3 calls for a “fixed price” for each of the task orders.  Does the Government anticipate a TO modification if, for example, overtime is required? 

DRFP Answer 41:
These are Firm Fixed Price Task Orders and revisions are not anticipated.  Offerors should propose all labor, including overtime and non labor resources required to accomplish the work identified in the Sample Task Orders.  Historically, only a minimal amount of overtime has been required to successfully accomplish the requirement of the contract.
DRFP Question 42:
Attachment L-3: separating out profit increases complexity of calculations.  What is the purpose of developing fully burdened rates (including profit) in the spreadsheets if these rates are not used to price the TO?

DRFP Answer 42:
See answer to Question 30
DRFP Question 43:
On page L-4, in Section L.8 Proposal Information Required, the following incomplete sentence regarding the model contracts exists…. . . . “Three copies of the model contract shall be provided in….”.   What is the end of this sentence? 

DRFP Answer 43:
See answer to Question 17.

DRFP Question 44:
I was wondering if the incumbent consulting firm allows to bid for this opportunity?
DRFP Answer 44:
The incumbent contractor graduated from the 8a program.
DRFP Question 45:
On page L-11, in Section L.10, III. Past Performance, 2. Instructions for Completion of Past Performance Questionnaire, the instructions state that the “Past Performance Questionnaire is to be submitted to the Evaluation Team along with the entire proposal package no later than 2:00 p.m. on January 24, 2005.”  On page L-2-1, in Attachment L-2, Past Performance Questionnaire, the transmittal letter states “The RFP instructs that we provide our customers with the attached questionnaire and requests that you provide requested data and submit it by February 1, 2005 directly to:”  Are the questionnaires to be submitted by the bidders to the referenced contract customers for completion or are the questionnaires to be submitted with the entire proposal submittal?  Is the February 1, 2005 submittal date correct on the transmittal letter?

DRFP Answer 45:
All proposal data, including Past Performance Questionnaires are due to the Government on the proposal due date which will be provided in the Final RFP.


Offeors shall complete Section 1 of the Past Performance Questionnaire and provide it with the transmittal letter to all contract references.  The contract references shall complete Part II of the Past Performance Questionnaire and submit it directly to the Government by the proposal submittal date identified in the final RFP.  The Past Performance Questionnaires are not submitted to the Government by the offerors.

Per Section L instructions, offerors shall include a listing of all contract references requested to submit Past Performance Questionnaires in the Relevant Past Performance section of its proposal.  


All sections of final RFP, including the transmittal letter,  will be updated to reflect the same date for proposal submission.
DRFP Question 46:
On page L-11, in Section L.10, III. Past Performance, 3. Safety and Environmental Performance, JSC requests that we submit our OHSA logs for the past 5 years for the contracts cited as a reference.  Are these logs included in the 25 page count limitation?

DRFP Answer 46:
See answer to Question 20.
DRFP Question 47:
Section L, page 4 & 5, L.8 PROPOSAL INFORMATION REQUIRED – Best Value Selection (BVS), states:  “Six (6) copies of your proposal (excluding the Model contract) shall be submitted in a single three ring binder as per the delivery instructions in Section L.7.  Three copies of the model contract shall be provided in   Offers shall include the offeror's facsimile number and e-mail address (es).  Facsimile offers are not authorized; however, the Government shall not assume responsibility for proper transmission. 


Do the 6 copies to be provided in the single (1) three-ring binder include everything except the model contract?  This would include the management, technical approach, past performance and cost, i.e. 4 parts? 

DRFP Answer 47:
See answer to Question 16.

DRFP Question 48:
In the second sentence (of question 47) above, what is missing after the word “in” and before the next sentence which starts with “Offers”? 

DRFP Answer 48:
See answer to Question 17.
DRFP Question 49:
Section L, page 12, L.13 COST/PRICE PROPOSAL VOLUME, subparagraph (a) titled “Introduction,” states: “Your fixed price IDIQ proposal shall be submitted in a separate volume labeled Cost/Price Proposal.”  


How many printed copies of the Cost/Price Proposal Volume are required?

DRFP Answer 49: 
See answer to Question 16.

DRFP Question 50:
Is the required Cost/Price Proposal Volume referenced in section L.13 to be combined with the Management Approach, Technical Proposal, and Past Performances within the three-ring binder as implied in the submittal instructions of section L.7? 

DRFP Answer 50:
See answer to Question 16.

DRFP Question 51:
At the pre-proposal conference, Mr. Art Klauss stated that 2 copies of the CD containing the EPM and cost data are required.  Section L, page 14, L.13 COST/PRICE PROPOSAL VOLUME, subparagraph (d) titled “CD Cost Proposal Organization” states: “In addition to the hardcopy requirements of the preceding section, each prime and major subcontractor is required to submit their EPM and any other electronic cost data, including formulas, on CD” but does not provide the number of CD’s required.  


How many CDs containing the EPM and cost data are required from each prime and from each major subcontractor?

DRFP Answer 51:
Two each.  If the major subcontractor considers their detailed supporting cost data to be proprietary, and does not wish the prime contractor to have access, then the subcontractor must submit 2 copies of the CD containing the EPM and cost data separately to the government.  At the very least, subcontractors must submit their fully burdened rates to the prime in order for the prime to correctly complete the Team Template.  Fully burdened rates are just that, and are not considered proprietary in a prime/sub relationship.  



The final RFP will be updated to specify this requirement.

DRFP Question 52:
At the pre-proposal conference, Mr. Art Klauss said that there should be a narrative description of the cost development included with the Cost Proposal that contains information such as the market indicator used for annual labor escalation and other pertinent items as appropriate.


Should this requirement be included in Section L under the Cost/Price Proposal Volume instructions?  If so, what would the page limits be on the narrative cost statement?

DRFP Answer 52:
As per the instructions in Section L.13 Cost/Price Proposal Volme offerors must submit a detailed basis of estimate in narrative (written) form supporting all proposed amounts on al templates.   This supporting narrative is not subject to the 35 page limitation.
DRFP Question 53:
Could you explain the purpose of the HRPO Draft Checklist and the relevance of the outline formats?

DRFP Answer 53:
The purpose of the checklist is to provide a tool for offerors in preparation of their proposal.  The Government intends to utilize this checklist to verify that all required information has been provided in the offeror’s proposal.  As per Section M of the RFP, Offers that do not respond to the required sections of the RFP may be determined not to be acceptable..
DRFP Question 54:
If the Government intention is to facilitate competition in order to obtain the Best Value (BVS) from competition for the HRPO contract, don’t you feel that 25-page limitation for the entire technical and management proposal is too restrictive and will limit competition?

DRFP Answer 54:
The page limitation for the final RFP will be increased from 25 to 35 pages.  The Government believes that the page limit is adequate for offerors to respond to the sections of the RFP that are page limited.  Please refer to Section L.7 Proposal Development and Page Limitation as not all sections are page limited.
DRFP Question 55:
Where is the Model Contract supposed to be placed in the response?

DRFP Answer 55:
See Question 16.

DRFP Question 56:
Are the resources providing liaison activities for the conversion from IPMS to IFM included in the 17 headcount or are they a temporary requirement that will no longer be needed at the completion of the conversion?

DRFP Answer 56:
The 17 FTE’s identified in the Independent Government Estimate include all work identified in the Sample Task Orders.  

DRFP Question 57:
Is the development of the SOP manual a new requirement?

DRFP Answer 57:
No, this is not a new requirement.  Development of the SOP manual is a requirement in the current contract under Section 2.2.2 of the SOW.
DRFP Question 58:
Section L-4 indicates that six (6) copies of our proposal should be submitted in a single three (3) ring binder.  Do you want all six copies in one binder or each copy in a binder of it’s own?

DRFP Answer 58:
See answer to Question 16.

DRFP Question 59:
In Section L-4 the last line of the last paragraph states “three copies of the model contract shall be provided in” (and stops there)  Would you complete that sentence.

DRFP Answer 59:
See answer to Question 17.

DRFP Question 60:
Why is the cut-off date for questions relative to such a complex solicitation only 3 working days after the pre-bid? 

DRFP Answer 60:
The HRPO solicitation is relatively small and is not considered a complex acquisition.  The cut off date for questions regarding the Draft RFP was originally set at one week from release of the Draft RFP.  This cut off date was extended by 4 days (2 working days).  The Government believes this is sufficient time for interested parties to review the Draft RFP and submit questions.  Additional time will be allotted for questions after release of the final RFP.
DRFP Question 61:
Ref.  Statement of Work Section 1.0. Purpose states:  The Contractor shall perform the work as specified in Attachment B, Statement of Work (SOW).  Please clarify this.

DRFP Answer 61:
The final RFP will be updated to correct this typographical error.  The Statement of Work is identified as Section C of the RFP.
DRFP Question 62:
What are the existing labor rates for the categories in this solicitation?

DRFP Answer 62:
Labor rates for the incumbent contractor are considered proprietary and cannot be released by the Government

DRFP Question 63:
Since this is not a new contract but a competition for work that is being performed by the incumbent contractor shown on the draft Statement of Work, why not publish the labor rates for the labor categories?

DRFP Answer 63:
See answer to Question 62.

DRFP Question 64:
Does the prime have to have 51% of the work if all team members are 8(a)?

DRFP Answer 64:
As per FAR 52.219-14 Limitations on Subcontracting, at least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern.  

Therefore, the prime contractor must incur at least 50% of the labor cost of the contract.
DRFP Question 65:
What benefits are the existing workforce receiving?

DRFP Answer 65:
This information is proprietary and cannot be released by the Government.
DRFP Question 66:
Why is the Safety Health and Compliance Plan due with the proposal?  Why not make it due 30 days after contract award?

DRFP Answer 66:
The final RFP will be updated to eliminate the requirement for submittal of a Safety and Health Plan with the initial proposal submission.  The awarded HRPO contractor will be required to submit their Safety and Health Plan and obtain NASA/JSC approval during the phase-in period. 

DRFP Question 67:
The incumbent staff is in place and performing the work; where then does the uncertainty lie? Is this the appropriate contract type for this kind of work? 

DRFP Answer 67:
This contract type does not imply uncertainty.  The work to be performed is clearly defined while an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contract allows flexibility for the various requiring organizations over the life of the contract.  Therefore, a determination was made by the Government that an IDIQ contract with Firm Fixed Price Task Orders was appropriate for this requirement.
DRFP Question 68:
Refer to DRD 5 - HRPO 5 Wage/Salary and Fringe Benefit Data.  This solicitation does not have labor categories reflective of this solicitation.  These categories are reflective of the Printing and Mail Support Services Contract.

DRFP Answer 68:
The labor categories provided are only for illustration purposes to assist the offeror in completion of the form.  The final RFP will include a a sample template with more generic labor categories to eliminate any confusion with other contracts.
DRFP Question 69:
Where are the DOL Wage Determination labor categories for HRPO?

DRFP Answer 69:
See answer to Question 34.
DRFP Question 70:
DRFP NNJ0468717R is this set aside for 8-A small business or are you allowing 2 Tiers?

DRFP Answer 70:
The subject solicitation is set-aside for 8 (a) firms.  Offerors are allowed to propose subcontractor or team members as long as the proposed arrangement complies with FAR 52.219-14 Limitations on Subcontracting which states that the prime offeror must incur at least 50% of the labor cost of the contract.
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